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BOARD OF TRUSTEES' REPORT

The Board of Trustees of the Seychelles Pension Fund ("the Fund") is pleased to present its report together
with the audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2024. As required under Section
54 of the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 (as amended), the annual report is presented to the Minister
responsible for Finance, the National Assembly and a copy is made available on the website of the Fund.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Seychelles Pension Scheme ("SPS") commenced its operations on January 1, 1991, under the Seychelles
Pension Scheme Act, 1990, CAP 220. In August 2005, the Seychelles Pension Scheme Act, 1990 was
repealed and was replaced by Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 under which the scheme became a
statutory body and was renamed as Seychelles Pension Fund ("the Fund").

REGISTERED OFFICE

The registered office of Seychelles Pension Fund is situated at Caravelle House, second floor, Victoria,
Mahé, Seychelles with its postal address, P O Box 576.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Seychelles Pension Fund is to collect mandatory and voluntary contributions from
members and to pay pension and benefits mostly to retiring members. Pension payments include monthly
pension to pensioners and to dependents of deceased members and other benefits under various schemes
as per Section 4 of the Act and applicable Regulations.

RESULTS
2024 2023
SR SR
Surplus for the year before fair value changes 103,922,162 89,976,916
Net changes in fair values of investment (34,406,139) 18,181,765
Surplus for the year 69,516,023 108,158,681
Retained surplus brought forward 1,617,941,205 1,509,782,524
Transferred from Deferred property lease (Note 19) 6,200,675 -
Reclassification of Reserve Fund (Note 23) 14,568,591 -
Retained surplus carried forward 1,708,226,494 1,617,941,205

INTEREST ON MEMBERS' FUND

Interest rate for the year 2024 was 1.5% and 3.75% for Mandatory and Voluntary contributions
respectively. The rates are based on average 91 days treasury bills and average saving rates for the
previous year end 2023, as published by Central Bank of Seychelles (2023: Mandatory 1.75%, Voluntary
4%).
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES' REPORT Continued

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Additions of SR. 2,949,783 to property and equipment during the year comprised building improvements,
software, equipment, furniture and fittings (2023: SR. 1,470,315). Disposals during the year comprised
motor vehicles, furniture and equipment carried at net book value of SR. 252,463 (2023: SR. 62,678).

The Board is of the opinion that the fair value of property and equipment as at December 31, 2024, did not
differ materially from its carrying amount at the reporting date.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Seychelles Pension Fund invested substantial amounts in properties for earning rental income and capital
appreciation purposes. As at December 31, 2024, these totaled to SR. 1.61 billion (2023: SR. 1.46 billion).
During the financial year under review, additions to investment properties amounted to SR. 16.7 million

(2023: SR. 11.9 million). The net gain on change in fair value on investment properties as at December 31,
2024 amounted to SR. 98.2 million {2023: Loss of SR. 12.1 million).

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Board of Trustees appointed/re-appointed for a period of three years effective March 1, 2024 were:

Shella Mohideen Chairperson (re-appointed)
Elsie Morel Trustee (re-appointed)
Brenda Morin Trustee (re-appointed)
Odile Vidot Trustee
Keith Arnephy Trustee
Dick Labonte Trustee
Tyrian Gendron Trustee
Fabiola Horner Trustee
Alexandra Benoiton Trustee
Vanessa Mussard Trustee

STATEMENT OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the overall management of the affairs of the Fund and all its
investment decisions. The Board is required to appoint a secretary who is responsible for convening all
meetings of the Board, the proper recording of its decisions and communications of those decisions to
those who are required to act on them. The Board also ensures that proper books of accounts and other
records in relation thereto are maintained. In preparing these financial statements, the Board has a
general responsibility to:

e ensure that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to assume continuance of the Fund;

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and;

« disclose and explain any material departures from applicable accounting standards.
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES' REPORT Continued

STATEMENT OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES Continued

As defined in the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 (as amended), the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") is
responsible for the day to day administration, including the collection of contributions, payment of
pensions and other benefits, investment of surplus monies and accounting for all monies collected, paid,
or invested by the Fund.

The Board and the Chief Executive Officer also have the general responsibility for taking reasonable steps
to safeguard the assets of the Fund and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Board and the Chief Executive Officer consider that they have met their aforesaid responsibilities.
AUDITORS
The Auditor General of Seychelles is mandated to carry out the audit of the Fund under Section 53(2) of

the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 (as amended). They have outsourced the services to Baker Tilly
Seychelles for the year 2024.

TRUSTEES

Shella Mohideen Odile Vidot Elsie Morel = Brerida Morin

Chairperson Trustee Trustee Trusiee
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Keith Arnephy Dick Labonte Tyrian Gendron Fabiola Horner

Trustee Trustee Trustee Trustee
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Alexandra Benoiton Vanessa Mussard

Trustee Trustee

Dated: May 14, 2025
Mahé, Seychelles




Office of the Auditor General
3rd Floor, Block C, Unity House
Victoria, Republic of Seychelles
Telephone: 248-4672500 Email: auditgen@oag.sc
Website: www.oag.sc Facebook: OAG Seychelles

Please address all correspondence to the Auditor General

OPINION OF AUDITOR GENERAL ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE
SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

Opinion

The accompanying financial statements of the Seychelles Pension Fund, set out on pages
5 to 56, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024;
statement of surplus and other comprehensive income; statement of changes in net
assets available for benefits; and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and the
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies,
have been audited on my behalf by Baker Tilly Chartered Accountants (auditors),
appointed under Section 19 of the Auditor General Act, 2010 read with Section 53(2) of
the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 (as amended). As per the agreement with the
auditors, they have reported to me the results of their audit and on the basis of their report,
| am satisfied that all information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, where necessary for the purpose of the audit, have been obtained.

Accordingly, in our opinion,

(a) proper accounting records have been kept by the Fund as far as it appeared from
examination of those records; and

(b) the financial statements on pages 5 to 56 present fairly, in all material aspects, the
financial position of the Fund as at 31 December 2024 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards and the Seychelles Pension
Fund Act 2005 (as amended).

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor-
General’s responsibilities for the audit of financial statements’ section of this report. | am
independent of the Fund in accordance with the INTOSAI Code of Ethics applicable to its
members, together with other ethical requirements that are relevant to the audit of
financial statements in Seychelles. | believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.
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Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial
statements.

» Fair valuation of financial assets and investment properties based on IFRS 13:

Our audit considered fair valuation of financial assets and investment properties as a key
audit matter. The materiality of the reported amounts in the financial statements, inherent
subjectivity due to the estimates used in determining the fair values and use of inputs from
various sources in the fair value calculation underpinned our basis for considering it as a
key audit matter.

To assess the reasonableness of the fair value of financial assets and investment
properties, the audit procedures (among others) were designed to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence, including the following:

e Evaluating the design effectiveness of controls over estimation of impairment of
financial assets, which included assessing the level of oversight, review and approval
of impairment policies of the Fund;

e Test-checking the underlying calculations and data;

e Obtaining management representations on the valuation expert's competency,
experience, qualifications and independence, where necessary;

¢ Verifying the reasonability of the assumptions used in fair valuation;

e Obtaining a written representation in regard to the valuation decisions and
assumptions;

¢ Assessing the adequacy of the related financial statement disclosures.

The value of the investment properties is subject to review every year by an independent
professionally qualified valuer, on an open market basis with existing tenancies based on
a valuation of properties policy approved by the Board, under the aegis of the valuation
committee set up in 2018.

Audit relied on the independent valuation reviewed and approved by the expert valuation
committee which is chaired by an independent, experienced and qualified professional in
the field of land valuation. All properties were revalued at the end of the year 2024 which
resulted in a net re-valuation gain of SR98.2 million for 23 properties.

Based on the audit work, no material misstatements concerning the fair value of financial
assets and investments were noted in accordance with IFRS 13.

> Impairment allowance for Financial assets based on IFRS 9:

The audit considered impairment allowance for financial assets as a key audit matter. The
materiality of the reported amounts in the financial statements and subjectivity associated
with Management’s impairment estimation underpinned our basis for considering it as a
key audit matter.

To assess the reasonableness of the impairment allowance, the audit procedures (among
others) were designed to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence, including the
following:
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¢ Performing procedures to understand the methodology applied by management in
their IFRS 9 model;

o Evaluating the impairment methodology applied against the requirements of IFRS 9
(financial instruments),

e Evaluating the completeness of data in the impairment model by reconciling the data
used in the impairment model to the debtor’s source;

¢ Agreeing source data used in the modeiling to supporting documentation on a sample
basis to assess accuracy and validity;

e Testing the assumptions and calculations used in the ECL, including, but not limited
to performing an assessment of (a) the modelling code to confirm that the developed
methodology applied in calculating the ECL allowance is appropriate; and (b) the
reasonableness of the overlays used to determine the potential impact of legislation
on the impairment allowance.

As a result of the above audit procedures, no material differences were noted.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
in compliance with the requirements of the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 (as
amended) and for such internal control as management determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Trustees either intends to liquidate the Fund or cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative to do so.

The Board of Trustees are also responsible for the overall management of the affairs of
the Fund including the operation of the Fund and making investment decisions and
financial reporting process.

Responsibilities of the Auditor General

My responsibility is to express an opinion on those financial statements based on our
audit and report it to the Board of Trustees.

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
and issue an auditor’s report in accordance with the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005
as amended. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of the audit in accordance with ISAs, the auditor exercises professional judgement
and maintains professional scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor also:
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o Identifies and assesses that risk of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtains audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for the opinion. The risk of not detecting material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omission or misrepresentation, or the override of internal control;

e obtains an understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the SPF’s internal control;

¢ evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management;

e concludes on the appropriateness of the management’s use of going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, concludes whether a
material uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If the auditor concludes that
a material uncertainty exists, the auditor is required to draw attention in the auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify the opinion. My conclusions are based on audit evidence
obtained to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future unforeseeable events or
conditions may cause the fund to cease to continue as a going concern;

o evaluates the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

» communicates with those charged with governance among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that are identified during the audit.

oy
o

Gamini Herath 16 May 2025
Auditor General Victoria, Seychelles




SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

Notes 2024 2023
SR SR
ASSETS
Non-current assets:
Property and equipment 7 14,496,240 16,376,990
Investment properties 8 1,609,997,524 1,453,434,179
Right-of-use on assets 9 40,041,319 40,556,783
Investment in subsidiary - OICL 10 40,562,865 38,631,300
Investment in associates 11 784,517,212 960,999,943
Investment in financial assets 14 621,193,179 591,712,973
Loan receivable 16 6,656,649 30,360,787
3,117,464,988 3,132,072,955
Current assets:
Investment in financial assets 14 1,095,713,593 740,205,451
Receivables and prepayments 15 86,188,244 79,159,143
Assets held for sale 12 150,603,316 188,413,054
Loan receivable 16 23,271,506 21,488,010
Cash and bank balances 13 134,908,661 173,566,348
1,490,685,320 1,202,832,006
Total assets 4,608,150,308 4,334,904,961
Current liabilities:
Other payables 17 32,514,436 24,884,811
Non-current liabilities:
Retirement benefit obligations 18 14,138,982 11,677,708
Deferred property lease 19 - 6,200,675
14,138,982 17,878,383
Net assets 4,561,496,890 4,292,141,767
Made up as follows:
Members' fund 21 2,166,064,473 1,972,426,048
Other fund 22 533,279,754 533,279,754
Reserve fund 23 - 14,568,591
Other reserves 24 153,926,169 153,926,169
Retained surplus 1,708,226,494 1,617,941,205
4,561,496,890 4,292,141,767

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Trustees on May 14, 2025

Shella Mohideen Nisreen Abdulmajid
Chairperson Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 9 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements
Auditor General's report on page 4




SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Contribution Income

Compulsory contributions:
- by employees
- by employers

Voluntary contributions:
- by employees
- by employers

Investment income
Members' interest
Surplus for the year from investments

Total contribution and investment income

Benefits paid

- Normal retirement

- Voluntary retirement refund upon retirement
- Death before normal retirement

- Permanent Incapacity

- Pre-Migration retirement

- Surviving spouse pension

- Children pension

- Post-Retirement surviving spouse

- Post-Retirement children pension

- Voluntary retirement contribution refund at 55 years onwards

- Dependent/Severe disability

- Refund of overpaid contributions
- Other adjustments

Total benefits paid

Excess contribution over benefits paid

Net increase in assets available for benefits for the year

Balance at January 1,
Balance from Deferred property lease

Balance as at December 31,

Notes 2024 2023
SR SR
405,421,953 374,504,292
405,646,709 374,049,547
29,573,919 27,378,011
12,683,907 11,907,151
853,326,488 787,839,001
27 39,701,836 34,804,904
69,516,023 108,158,681
109,217,859 142,963,585
962,544,347 930,802,586
545,337,452 542,080,081
1,051,679 2,387,815
5,962,281 2,977,337
77,946,572 72,362,806
1,277,858 909,251
18,957,874 17,186,498
5,211,341 5,216,501
25,233,379 21,120,872
2,173,051 2,105,290
15,071,783 12,214,496
345,034 27,480
819,123 533,613
2,472 64
699,389,899 679,122,104
153,936,589 108,716,897
263,154,448 251,680,482
4,292,141,767 4,040,461,285
6,200,675 -
4,561,496,890 4,292,141,767

The notes on pages 9 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements

Auditor General's report on page 4




SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

STATEMENT OF SURPLUS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Income

Interest income

Dividend income

Rental income

Other income - surcharges

Amortisation of deferred Government Grant

Expenditure

Interest credited to members
Administrative expenses

Investment fees

Events and marketing

Property management expenses

Covid -19 related expenses

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortisation of right-to-use on assets

Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Provision for/(Reversal of) credit impairment
Auditors' remuneration

Other professional fees

Surplus before fair value changes and exchange differences
Gain on exchange
Surplus for the year before fair value changes

Increase in fair value of quoted equities

Increase in fair value - OICL

Increase/(Decrease) in fair value of investment properties
(Decrease)/Increase in fair value of property and equipment
Increase in fair value of associate - SBL

Increase in fair value of associate - ASBS

Decrease in fair value of associate - CWS

Total fair value changes

Other comprehensive income
Increase in fair value of unquoted equities
Total other comprehensive income

Net changes in fair values of investment

Surplus for the year

Retained surplus brought forward
Transfer from Deferred property lease
Reclassification of Reserve Fund

Retained surplus carried forward

Notes 2024 2023
SR SR
25 61,881,757 46,011,281
26 62,655,744 61,405,397
8 (b) 111,216,981 103,334,985
1,185,971 2,153,326
19 - 108,680
236,940,453 213,013,669
27 39,701,836 34,804,904
28 71,544,882 60,277,940
908,444 810,135
1,576,967 1,703,382
8 (b) 19,743,284 18,463,053
25,084 103,724
7 4,189,664 4,392,675
9 515,464 515,464
252,463 62,678
15 {ii) 460,361 (1,106,046)
385,000 385,000
29 4,033,442 3,085,208
143,336,891 123,498,117
93,603,562 89,515,552
10,318,600 461,364
103,922,162 89,976,916
14 (e) 132,845 265,690
10{a) 1,931,565 3,863,130
8 (b) 98,198,506 (12,140,962)
7 (7,105) 450,282
11 (a) 6,629,212 -
11 (b) 368,057 56,899
11 (c) (183,480,000) -
(76,226,920) (7,504,961)
14 (e) 41,820,781 25,686,726
41,820,781 25,686,726
(34,406,139) 18,181,765
69,516,023 108,158,681
1,617,941,205 1,509,782,524
19 6,200,675 -
23 14,568,591 -
1,708,226,494 1,617,941,205

The notes on pages 9 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements

Auditor General's report on page 4




SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Notes 2024 2023
SR SR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in assets available for benefits 263,154,448 251,680,482
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 7 4,189,664 4,392,675
Amortisation of right-to-use on assets 9 515,464 515,464
Amortisation of deferred government grant 19 - (108,680)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 252,463 62,678
Provision for retirement benefit obligation 18 6,035,814 4,936,934
Employee benefits paid during the year 18 (3,574,540) (5,145,237)
Provision for/(reversal of} credit impairment 15 (ii) 460,361 (1,106,046)
Fair value gain/{loss) on property and equipment 7 7,105 {450,282)
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment properties (net) 8&12 (98,198,508) 12,140,962
Fair value gain on quoted and unquoted equities 14 (f) (41,953,626) (25,952,416)
Fair value gain on associates 11 176,482,731 (56,898)
Fair value gain on subsidiary 10 (1,931,565) (3,863,130)
Interest receivable 25 (61,881,757) (46,011,281)
Dividend income 26 (62,655,744) (61,405,397)
Cash generated from operations 180,902,310 129,629,828
Changes in working capital:
Receivables and prepayments (7,489,462) 19,995,876
Payables and accruals 7,629,625 1,890,356
Net cash inflow from operating activities 181,042,473 151,516,060
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment 7 (2,949,783) (1,470,315)
Reclassification of software to expense 381,301 -
Purchase of investment properties 8&12 (20,555,099) (13,766,258)
Loan repayment received from PMC 16 25,109,335 25,109,335
Purchase of financial assets 14 (f) (1,570,613,442) (1,226,772,857)
Proceeds from redemption of financial assets 14 (f) 1,227,578,720 938,299,851
Interest received (net of interest on PMC loan) 25 58,693,064 41,142,622
Dividend received 26 62,655,744 61,405,397
Net cash outflow from investing activities (219,700,160) (176,052,225)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (38,657,687) (24,536,165)
At January 1, 173,566,348 198,102,513
At December 31, 13 134,908,661 173,566,348

The notes on pages 9 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements

Auditor General's report on page 4




SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Fund established under the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 (as amended) is domiciled in
the Republic of Seychelles and its registered office situated at the Caravelle House, Victoria, with its
postal address P.O Box 576, Mahé, Seychelles.

investments made by the Fund as required under Section 50 of the Seychelles Pension Fund Act,
2005 (as amended) are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

These financial statements will be presented to the Minister responsible for Finance, laid before
the National Assembly by the Minister responsible for Finance and made available on the website
of the Fund as required in accordance with Section 53 of the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 (as
amended).

Type of pension system

The Fund operates a Pay-As-You-Go pension plan, which is a solidarity between generations. This
means that the working generation of today pays for retirees of today and the next generation
pays for tomorrow’s retirees. The pension plan is a Defined Benefits system where pensions are
paid based on a pre-determined formula as per Regulation 8 (1B) of the Seychelles Pension Fund
(Benefits) Regulations.

FUNDING POLICY

The overriding principle of the Fund's policy is that contributions are increased in a steady and
phased manner as recommended by the Fund's Actuary and excess funds are invested to yield
maximum returns on the assets informed by the Fund's liabilities. In other words, funds which are
not required for current benefit payments and administration expenses are invested to provide
returns to assist in sustaining the Fund in the medium to long-term.

As at December 31, 2024, the total active members below the age of 45 were 26,576,
representing 61.4% of the total active members.

VALUATION OF SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

Under Section 55 of the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 (as amended), an actuarial valuation of
the Fund shall be carried out every three years by an approved actuary. The most recent actuarial
valuation exercise of the Fund was carried out as of December 31, 2021 by BBL World Actuaries
from Quebec, Canada. The next actuarial valuation will be due for the reporting year ending
December 31, 2024 and this shall commence once the audit for the year 2024 is completed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

4.1

(a)

(b)

(c)

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been applied consistently (subject to
para 4.1 (f)), are set out below:

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Seychelles Pension Fund have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Standards interpretations Committee (the “Committee”), and comply with Seychelles Pension Fund
Act, 2005 (as amended) and “Public Enterprises Act, 2023”, including any amendments thereof.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties that have been measured at fair value.

Reporting and functional currency

The reporting and functional currency of the Fund is Seychelles Rupee (“SR”), as most of the
transactions are denominated in Seychelles Rupees.

Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Fund's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement, complexity or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 5 (Critical accounting
estimates and judgements). The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which it affects and also future periods if it affects both
current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

(d)

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Consolidation

The Fund adopted IFRS 10 (Consolidated financial statements) consolidation exemption with
regards to ‘investment entities’. The Fund believes that a class of entity (an investment entity) uses
a different business model to most other entities. it manages all its investments on a fair value
basis, whether they are simple investments, associates or controlled. It provides fair value
information to its users, and that fair value information is more useful for decision-making than
consolidated information. All the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures held as investments
are measured in accordance with IFRS 9 (Financial instruments).

The Fund further noted that preparing consolidated financial statements for such entities could
hinder users’ ability to assess their financial position and results; this is because consolidated
financial statements empbhasise the financial position, operations, and cash flow of their investees,
rather than those of the entities themselves.

IFRS 10 requires an entity that is a parent to present consolidated financial statements. The
amendment provides a limited scope exception to parents that are ‘investment entities’. If the
entity is an investment entity under the standard, it is exempt from consolidating underlying
investees that it controls; instead, it is required to account for these subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss under IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’.

The standard defines an investment entity as, an entity that:

* obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investor(s) with
investment management services;

e commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from
capital appreciation, investment income or both; and

s Measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value
basis.

For an entity to qualify as an investment entity it must meet the above definition. The entity must
also consider the following typical characteristics of an investment entity:

¢ holding more than one investment;

e having more than one investor;

¢ having investors that are not the entity’s related parties; and

* Having ownership interests in the form of equity or similar interests.

As it stands the very purpose of a pension fund is to accumulate contributions from both
employers and employees and to invest these funds for investment returns (both capital
appreciation and investment income) and to distribute these returns once its members reach the
age requirements in annuity until death and/or to their beneficiaries where applicable.
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4, SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
(d) Consolidation Continued

The Board is of the opinion that the Fund complies with all the definitions of an investment entity
and possesses all the characteristics of an investment entity, namely:

* The Fund holds various financial asset investments;

* The Fund investors include all Seychellois-employed residents;

¢ While the Fund may have a few members who are related to the Fund, this is purely incidental
since the Fund supports, by definition, all Seychellois residents and this does not affect
compliance with these characteristics; and

e The members have ownership interests in the Fund represented by the Member’s fund
displayed in equity under the Statement of Financial Position.

(e) Going concern
The Board of Trustees assessed the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern and are satisfied
that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Board
of Trustees is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern and it does not intend either to liquidate or to cease

operations of the Fund. Therefore, the Board continues to prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis.

(f) Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those used in the previous financial year,
except for the following new standards and amendments to IFRS that are mandatorily effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024:

(i) New standards, improvements, interpretations, and amendments issued

e Amendmentsto IAS 1 p Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
Non-current liabilities with Covenants

e Amendment tolAS7 and IFRS 7 : Supplier Finance Arrangements
» Amendment to IFRS 16 : Lease liability in a Sale and Leaseback

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Fund. The Fund
intends to use the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable.
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(f)

(ii)

(8)

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Changes in accounting policies Continued
New standards, improvements, interpretations, and amendments issued but not yet effective

The following new accounting standards, improvements, interpretations and amendments have
been issued, but are not mandatory until the dates shown, and hence have not been early adopted
by the Fund in preparing the financial statements for the year under review.

Standards and amendments mandatorily effective from January 1, 2025
¢ Amendments to IAS 21 : Lack of Exchangeability
Standards and amendments mandatorily effective from January 1, 2026

e Annual improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards - Volume 11

¢ Amendments to IFRS 9 and : Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial
IFRS 7 Instruments

Contracts referencing Nature-dependent Electricity previously
Power Purchase Agreements

Standards and amendments mandatorily effective from January 1, 2027

e |FRS 18 {replacing IAS 1)  : Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

e |FRS19 : Subsidiaries without Public Accountability : Disclosures

The Fund is currently assessing the impact of these new accounting standards and amendments
and anticipates that the same will be adopted by the Fund to the extent applicable from their
effective dates. The adoption of these standards, improvements, interpretations, amendments and
any other standards issued by the IASB, but not yet to be effective, is not expected to have a
material impact on the financial statements of the Fund in the year of their initial application
except IAS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements as it is expected to have a
significant effect on the presentation and disclosure of certain items. These changes include
categorisation and sub-totals in the statement of profit or loss, aggregation/disaggregation and
labelling of information, and disclosure of management-defined performance measures.

The financial statements will provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In
addition, the Fund will present an additional statement of financial position at the beginning of the
preceding period when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective
restatement, or a reclassification of items in financial statements. An additional statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the prior period will be presented in these financial
statements due to the retrospective correction of an error.

Comparative information

The previous year figures and phrases have been reclassified whenever necessary to conform to
current year presentation.
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4.2

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Financial Instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

Financial instruments are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Fund becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item not
at fair value through statement of surplus (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue.

Financial assets: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — debt investment; FVOCI — equity instrument; or
Fair Value through statement of surplus (FVTPL).

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

e it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
fiows; and

e jts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of
Principal and Interest (SPP1).

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

s jt is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal
amount outstanding.

The financial statements do not include any debt investments measured at FVOCI.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC! as described above are
measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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4.2

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Financial Instruments Continued
Business model assessment

The Fund makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and
information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

* The stated policies are objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of assets;

* The risks that affect performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

¢ How managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or contractual cash flows collected; and

e The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Fund's continuing recognition of the
assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPIs

For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Fund considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Fund
considers:

* contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

e terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features;

* prepayment and extension features; and

e Terms that limit the Fund's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).
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4.2

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Financial Instruments Continued

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or
premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an
amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued contractual interest
(which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Fund were to
change its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets
would be reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
e Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income and expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.

Equity investments (listed) and unlisted private equities which are managed and their
performance is evaluated, on a fair value basis and are designated as FVTPL are included in this

category.
e  Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate.
The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in the statement of surplus. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in the statement of surplus.

Cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits, contribution receivable from members, rental
receivables, loans and receivables and investments in treasury assets are included in this
category.
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4,

4.2

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Financial Instruments Continued
s Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are never reclassified to
statement of surplus.

Unlisted private equities which are managed, and their performance is evaluated, on a fair
value basis and are not designated as FVTPL are included in this category.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the statement of surplus. The financial
statements do not include any FVTPL financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
surplus. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of surplus. This
includes deposits from tenants and other payables.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Fund derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Fund neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Fund derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. The Fund also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid is recognised in the statement of surplus.
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4.2

4.3

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Financial Instruments Continued
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Fund currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment for financial assets is derived based on an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model and
applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to
investments in equity instruments.

ECL model is the impairment method prescribed under IFRS 9 on “Financial Instruments” and will
be calculated by multiplying the current gross receivable balance by the probability adjusted loss
rate. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve
month expected credit loss (‘ECL’) is used to provide for impairment loss, otherwise lifetime ECL is
used. However, only in case of trade receivables, The Fund applies the simplified approach which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The
Fund measures the impairment by applying a predetermined percentage to the receivables falling
under different age buckets and is not significantly deviated had it been computed based on
expected credit loss model.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off {(either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Fund determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Fund's procedures for
recovery of amounts due.

Current versus non-current classification

The Fund presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. An asset is current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or available to be settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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4.3

4.4

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Current versus non-current classification Continued

A liability is current when:

e |tis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The terms of the liability that could at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Fund classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Property and equipment

Capitalisation Policy for the acquisition, management, sale and disposal of the Fund-owned fixed
assets were implemented during the year. Its aim is to establish standard guidelines for
capitalisation of fixed assets owned by the Fund in conformity with IFRS and Fund's valuation policy
and is followed for the accounting and management of all the Fund-owned fixed assets. These
relate to all transactions relating to the acquisition, maintenance, sale, construction, and final
disposal of the Fund's fixed assets which will ensure transparency, consistency and accountability in
the accounts.

Land and building, held for use in the production or supply of goods or for administrative purposes,
are stated at their fair value, based on annual valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation for buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the
revalued amount of the asset. All other property and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Fund and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years
Buildings 50
Leasehold improvements 15
Equipment 5
Furniture and Fittings 10

Motor vehicles 5
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4.4

4.5

4.6

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Property and equipment Continued

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. Where the carrying amount of asset is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation are credited to a revaluation surplus in the
statements of net assets available for benefits. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset are charged against revaluation surplus in the statements of net assets available for
benefits directly; all other decreases are changed to the statement of surplus.

Gains and losses on disposals of property and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are included in the statement of surplus. On disposal of revalued assets,
the amounts included in revaluation surplus are transferred to retained earnings.

Intangibles

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets comprise software which have a finite economic life. Intangible assets are
measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it
relates. All other expenditures are recognised in the statement of surplus when incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis in the statement of surplus and other
comprehensive income over their estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available for
use. The estimated useful life of computer software for the current and comparative periods is 3 to
5 years. Intangible assets' residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the statement of surplus when the asset is derecognised.

investment properties

Properties held to earn rent/or for capital appreciation or both are classified as investment
properties. Investment properties are carried at fair value, representing open-market value
determined annually. Changes in fair values are recognized in the statement of surplus and
subsequently in net assets available. Investment properties are transferred to property and
equipment, or asset held for sale when they cease to meet the recognition criteria.
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4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Investment in subsidiary
Consolidation

The subsidiaries of the Fund are not consolidated due to the application of IFRS 10 consolidation
exemption for ‘investment entities’.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are measured and accounted for at FVTPL. Fair value gains or losses on
subsidiaries are recognised on a separate line in the statement of surplus.

Investment in associates
Separate financial statements

Investments in associates are measured and accounted for at FVTPL. Fair value gains or losses on
associated are recognised on a separate line in the statement of surplus.

Receivables

Receivables are stated at original invoice amount less provision as per the expected credit loss
model. Bad debts are written off when there is no possibility of recovery.

The Fund makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade receivables and records the
loss allowance as lifetime expected credit losses. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual
cash flows, considering the potential for default at any point during the life of the financial
instrument. In calculating the provision, the Fund uses its historical experience, external indicators,
and forward-looking information to calculate the expected credit losses using a provision matrix.

The Fund assesses impairment of receivables on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risk
characteristics and they have been grouped based on the days past due (refer to note 15 for a
detailed analysis of how the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 are applied).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and balances with banks. For statement of cash
flows purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts.

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, balances with
banks, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less at the date of inception and bank overdrafts, if any. In the
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
The cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method.
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411

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Other current assets

Other current assets include fixed deposits, prepaid expenses, advances to suppliers, and other
deposits and advances which are carried at amounts recoverable through collection of monies or
receipt of goods or services. Prepaid expenses pertain mainly to rent and medical insurance. Other
deposits pertain to security deposits and advances pertain to staff advances.

Related parties

The Fund enters into transactions with companies and entities that fall within the definition of a
related party as contained in IFRS. Related parties comprise companies and entities under joint or
common management or control, their partners and key management personnel, subsidiaries,
joint ventures, parent, associates, and other related parties.

Other payables

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received and
advance received from customers, whether claimed by the supplier or not. Monies received in
advance for goods or services to be provided subsequent to the year-end are recognised as
advances from customers in current liabilities. The carrying amount of other payables approximate
their amortised cost.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Accruals

Accruals are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be
required to settle the obligation.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
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4.17

(i)

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Employee benefits obligations

Provision is made for Gratuity, end of contract and end of service benefits due to employees in
accordance with the applicable Government Regulations and current applicable Labour Laws for
their periods of service up to the reporting date. The provision for the end of service benefits is
calculated annually based on their current basic remuneration.

Employment benefits

Employment benefits consist of short-term employment benefits, long term employment benefits,
and post-employment benefits. Accounting policies followed for each of these benefits are as
follows:

Short term employment benefits

Short term employment benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be
paid under short-term cash bonuses if the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this.

Long term employment benefits

In terms of Circular No 2 of 2016 issued by the Department of Public Administration whereby
employees in a parastatal organisation are entitled to a gratuity on completion of 5 years in service
and each 5 years anniversary dates during the terms of the circular at the rates defined in the
circular. At the end of each reporting period, accumulated long term employment benefits are
measured in line with the applicable regulations for completeness. Shortfall, if any, is provided by
charging to the statement of profit or loss.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits consist of defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Fund pays fixed
contributions to the Seychelles Pension Fund and the Fund has no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized

as an employee benefit expense in the statement of profit or loss in the periods during which
services are rendered by employees.
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4.17

(ii)

4.18

4.19

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Employee benefits obligations Continued
Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit other than a defined contribution plan.
Provision for post-employment benefits with respect to long service compensation commences
and is recognized as soon as the employees meet the eligibility criteria specified under the
Seychelles Employment Act with respect to completion of 5 years of continuous employment. The
provision is made at one day for each completed month of service after completion of 5 years of
continuous employment. The employees under fixed term contracts are eligible for End of Contract
gratuity payable to employees under Fixed Term Contracts at rates between 5-15% applied to the
total remuneration earned during the contractual term. For the provisioning requirement the
highest rate of 15% is applied.

At the end of each reporting period, accumulated post-employment benefits are measured in line
with the applicable regulations for completeness. Shortfall, if any, is provided by charging to the
statement of profit or loss. Further provision is required for past services in the year if there is an
increase in basic salary since the effect of increased salary would impact the existing provision.
Provision is reversed to the statement of profit or loss when an employee defaults the eligibility
criteria at the time or before termination of his employment. The liability recognized in the
statement of financial position is the present value of the defined obligation at the reporting date.

The obligation has been determined using the method as per the Seychelles Employment Act and
management has estimated that the amount of liability provided will not be materially different
had it been computed by an external actuary.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Fund has a possible obligation as a result of past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events, not wholly within the control of the Fund; or when the Fund has a present
legal or constructive obligation, that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Borrowings and borrowings costs
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless there is a formal agreement in place to defer
repayment for a period in excess of 12 months, in which case the amount repayable after 12

months at the reporting date is classified as non-current liabilities.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that

"necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as

part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they
occur.
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4.20

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Seychelles Rupees at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporting date are retranslated to Seychelles Rupees at the exchange rate at that date. Foreign
currency gains or losses on monetary items are the differences between the amortised cost in
Seychelles Rupees at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments
during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the
end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of historical
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences arising on the translation are recognised in the statement of surplus. As at year end,
the main exchange rates against the Seychelles Rupees were as follows:

Currencies Exchange rates Changes in % ge
2024 2023 2024 2023

United States Dollar 14.81 14.14 4.78% -0.58%

Euro 15.39 15.85 -2.94% 6.12%

At the year-end or at reporting periods, all assets and liabilities will be valued as per the
Investment Policy or the CBS par rate as per the Finance policy. These shall also be treated in
accordance with IFRS. The translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of surplus.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the statement of comprehensive income within ‘finance income or cost’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of surplus within ‘other
(losses)/gains net’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date the fair value was
determined.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at FVTPL, are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in the other reserve in equity.

Changes
Currencies Exchange rates as at in % ge
Apr9,2025 Dec 31, 2024
United States Dollar: SR 14.50 14.81 -2.09%

Euro: SR 15.53 15.39 0.92%
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4.21

4.22

423

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Leases
Leases as lessee and right-of-use-assets

The Fund assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract, that is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The Fund recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-
of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. Lease payments for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Right-of-use assets:

The Fund recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the date representing the right to use the underlying assets. Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are presented as separate line items in the statement of
financial position. Depreciation related to right-of-use assets, interest costs on lease liabilities and
rent concessions, if temporary, are shown separately in the income statement.

Short term leases and leases of low-value-assets:

The Fund applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases that are considered to be low-value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contributions receivable
Contributions receivable are recognized when due which is 21st of the following month.

Contributions receivable are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

The nominal value of contributions receivable is assumed to approximate its fair value.

Benefits payable

Benefits payable are stated at their nominal value.

The nominal value of benefits payable is assumed to approximate its fair value.
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4.24

4.25

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the
ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The Fund recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Fund's
activities.

Rental income

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
When the Fund provides incentives to its tenants, the cost of incentives is recognised over the
lease term, on a straight-line basis, as a reduction of rental income.

Interest income
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.

In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired). However, for financial assets that have become
credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, the interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Dividend income

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes all realised and unrealised fair value
changes and foreign exchange differences, interest, and dividend income.

Taxation

In accordance with paragraph 69 of the Seychelles Pension Act, 2005, the Fund is exempt from
stamp duty, business tax, trade tax, goods and services tax and all other taxes, fees and duties on
its assets, documents, instruments, profits, operations, and properties.

However, Seychelles Revenue Commission (SRC) has registered the Fund as a Value Added Tax
Business on the January 1, 2020; and the Fund deduct income tax for its employees’ salary for
onward remittance to SRC including tax on the Income and Non-Monetary Benefits Act.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within next year are discussed below.

Classification of financial assets

The Fund follows the guidance of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9 — “Financial
instruments” on classifying non-derivative financial assets in accordance with the Fund's business
model and cash flow test. This classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Fund evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to collect
contractual cash flows or to achieve an objective by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

The Fund follows the guidance of IFRS 9 ECL method to determine whether its financial assets
require impairment. Expected credit losses are calculated by identifying scenarios in which a loan
or receivable defaults; estimating the cash shortfall that would be incurred in each scenario if a
default were to happen; multiplying that loss by the probability of the default happening; and
summing the results of all such possible default events. This process requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Fund considers all facts and circumstances that are
available at the reporting date.

Limitations of sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis in respect of market risk demonstrates the effect of a change in a key
assumption while other assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between
the assumptions and other factors. It should also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear
and larger or smaller impacts should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

Sensitivity analysis does not take into consideration that the Fund's assets and liabilities are
actively managed. Other limitations include the use of hypothetical market movements to
demonstrate potential risk that only represent the Fund's views of possible near-term market
changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS Continued

Impairment of other assets

At each balance sheet date, management reviews and assesses the carrying amounts of the other
assets and where relevant writes them down to their recoverable amounts based on the best
estimates.

Contributions receivable

As per the Seychelles Pension Fund Act 2005, contributions are due on the 21st day of the
following month. At year end, contributions for the month of December are due to be paid in
January the following year, which is not in the financial year. Therefore, an estimate is made based
on the actual contribution received of the preceding months.

Fair Value Estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from for example, a stock exchange and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Fund is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily quoted
equity investments classified as trading securities.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS Continued
{f) Fair Value Estimation Continued

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets; including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets not
measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value:

Fair Value measurement using
Notes Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
SR'000 SR'000 SR'000 SR'000

December 31, 2024

Assets measured at FVTOCI/FVTPL:
Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity securities 14 364,346 14 - 364,332

Assets measured at Amortised cost:
Financial assets not measured at fair value

Fixed deposits 14 1,049,513 - - -

Corporate bonds 14 5,000 - = -

Treasury bills and bonds 14 298,048 - - -
1,716,907 14 - 364,332

December 31, 2023

Assets measured at FVTOCI/FVTPL:
Financial assets measured at fair value
Equity securities 14 322,392 14 - 322,378

Assets measured at Amortised cost:
Financial assets not measured at fair value

Fixed deposits 14 716,461 - - -
Corporate bonds 14 5,000 - - -
Treasury bills and bonds 14 288,065 - - .
1,331,918 14 - 322,378
6. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Trustees has the overall responsibility of determining the risk management
framework and policies of the Fund. It also delegates the authority for designing and implementing
risk management processes to the risk management function.

The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of risks. The overall objective of the Board of Trustees is
to set policies that seek to mitigate and reduce risks as far as possible, without unduly affecting the
competitiveness and flexibility of the Fund’s operations.
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(a)

RISK MANAGEMENT Continued

Further details regarding some of the main risks are set out below:

Investment risk

There are some risks that are directly linked to the investments of the Fund. Sustained poor
performance would lead to insufficient returns that are necessary to support the Fund's long-term
sustainability.

The Fund has adopted a prudent approach to asset management that is likely to generate
moderate, yet regular returns. The primary control measure is the regular appraisal of the Fund's
assets and investment policy by the Board of Trustees upon the advice of the Actuary and other
external advisors as appropriate.

The following types of investment risks can be justified:
Interest rate risk

The risk that falling interest rates will reduce investment income on fixed income instruments. The
Fund finances its operations through operating cash flows which are principally denominated in
Seychelles Rupee.

Several specific risk measures may be cited:

e The Fund's primary interest rate risk relates to interest-bearing investments. The information
on maturity dates and effective interest rates of financial assets are disclosed under Note 14.

e The Fund does not borrow, so the cost of borrowing is nil and unaffected by raise in interest
rates.

e There is a loan extended to Property Management Corporation ('PMC') at “fixed” rate.
Although these rates are adjusted, where the spread between the Fund's rates and bank rates
becomes too significant, there is a certain inertia that tends to protect the Fund from sudden
or temporary falls.

Sensitivity analysis

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
results for the year would have been as shown below:

Financial Assets at
amortised cost
2024 2023
SR'000 SR'000

Impact on surplus for the year * 619 + 460




SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND 32

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

6.

(a)

RISK MANAGEMENT Continued
Investment risk Continued
Price risk

The risk that a sudden fall in asset values restricts the Fund's ability to pay benefits. There are
several ways in which the Fund manages this risk:

» Diversification — the assets are held in a wide range of different investments, thus limiting the
probability of all assets falling in values simultaneously. However, there are limited investment
opportunities.

e Liquidity — great care is taken to ensure that the Fund should not need to realize potentially
volatile assets when their values are less.

e Liquidity reserves policy is in place since 2022 with thresholds reviewed continually.

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases in fair value of the investments on
the Fund's fair value of financial assets. The analysis is based on the assumption that the fair value

had increased/decreased by 100 basis points.

Financial Assets at FVTPL

2024 2023
SR'000 SR'000
Impact of change in fair value + 762 + 75

Liquidity risk

The risk that cash flow requirements will force the Fund to realize an investment on poor terms,
either through the investment’s non-marketability (a loan) or illiquidity (a building), or simply
because the asset value is temporarily depressed (a share).

The Fund controls this risk primarily via a detailed annual budget to ensure that the investment
strategy generate positive cash flows, including where necessary the proceeds of the sale of certain
assets. Cash flow forecasts help the Fund to take appropriate actions.

The Fund also has a portfolio of liquid assets, the maturities of which falls either before or
concurrent to the maturity of its obligations.

Procedures have also been established throughout the Fund so that all users channel their
requirements to the finance function. This ensures that budget exercise is carried out in an
effective manner.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Fund's liquidity reserve on the basis of expected
cash flow and does not foresee any major liquidity risk over the short to medium term.
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6.

(a)

(b)

RISK MANAGEMENT Continued

Investment risk Continued

Credit risk

The risk that a member defaults on his contributions or a possible default by a tenant.

The risk is minimised by the fact that contributions to the Fund by active workers are mandatory
and contributions are deducted directly from employees’ salaries and remitted to the Fund. There
is no history of material bad debts from contributions. The Fund has established procedures to
ensure that rental agreements are made with tenants with an appropriate credit history and
through a newly introduced standing of order monthly rent payments which are assumed.
Therefore, risks of bad debts are considered to be low.

A Debtor Management Policy was implemented in the year 2020. The policy aims to put in place
effective procedures for the Fund to manage its debts in an efficient manner. A Debt Recovery
Committee was set up in the year 2023 to consider and review recurring cases of defaulters and
propose the course of necessary action.

Currency risk

The Fund's exposure to currency risk is limited as only a small percentage of the portfolio is
invested in foreign currencies overseas and domestically. The Fund holds foreign currencies to
pursue its diversification strategy, primarily by developing its overseas investment portfolio which
are met through requests with financial institutions.

Counter party risk

The risk that an external fund manager defaults on its contractual responsibilities. The risk is
mitigated via the following measures:

e All fund managers are subject to rigorous in-house assessment and due diligence from well
known, independent external experts prior to appointment, and to regular appraisal
thereafter.

e Overseas fund managers are generally large, well-established organisations with sound
reputations and track records.

Economic risk

Economic risk refers to the possibility that changes in macroeconomic conditions which will
negatively impact the Fund and its investments. For instance, political instability or exchange rate
fluctuations can impact losses or gains this will weaken the Fund's financial position.
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(b)

(c)

RISK MANAGEMENT Continued
Economic risk

Two examples of such risk are:
Foreign Exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk the Fund takes when conducting transactions in foreign
currencies. All currencies can fluctuate, and this type of volatility can affect the profit margins of
the Fund's foreign investments.

Inflation risk

Inflation Risk also known as Purchasing Power Risk, commonly refers to how the prices of goods
and services increase more than expected. Inversely, such a situation results in the same amount of
money resulting in less purchasing power. For instance, If the Fund buys a bond at the rate of 3%,
then this would be the nominal return of the investment. However, if the inflation rate is at 2%,
then the purchasing power is only really increasing by 1%.

The Fund recognizes the adverse effects of such risks and has put in place controls such as:

» Diversification of Investment.

¢ Index-linked investments.

¢ Indexation maximised at 5% in accordance with Regulation 36 of the Fund (Benefits).

* Regulations as amended in 2013 (S.I. 3 of 2013).

e Adopt tactical investment approach to lessen short term exposure from adverse market
movements.

e Monitor the maturity profile of related investments and seek most favourable market rates for
new placements.

Operational risk

Operational risk describes as “The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people, systems or from external events”.

Operational risk is, however, remote since the Fund's operations are supported by strong
management structure and controls in place. These activities are under close supervision of the
management in turn monitored by the Board of Trustees who are given a monthly report by the
CEO.

There is also an internal audit department assessing and testing all risks and internal controls
helping to reinforce any shortfalls that could arise. A Risk Department, a Quality Assurance Analyst
and compliance function under the Business Development and Compliance Section also
strengthens in risk mitigation process to ensure that there are no malpractices and fraud.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

RISK MANAGEMENT Continued
Legal risk

Legal risks occur from negligence or a deliberate failure to comply with client obligations. All the
activities of the Fund are determined by the “Seychelles Pension Act, 2005”, and the Fund is
regulated by PEMC. The Fund is also accountable to the Minister responsible for Finance for
submission of its Annual report, and a copy of which is also submitted to the National Assembly by
the Minister.

In addition, the Fund has in place a legal and compliance function to ensure compliance to legal
obligations and a legal counsel on retainer. Legal and compliance section plays a major role in the
mitigation of such risk in collaboration of the Risk Section.

Disaster recovery risk

An event such as a cyberattack, natural disaster, power outage, or human error can cause network
failure, and seriously disrupt operations. So, disaster recovery is being able maintain or quickly
restore your IT infrastructure and services in a disaster.

Any disaster recovery plan definition should relate to business continuity. The Fund aims to
minimize business loss (productivity, revenue, data), and liability. Downtime derails processes or
shuts down customer communication, hence a speedy recovery is critical. Ever since the covid 19
pandemic the Fund has invested a lot of resource disaster recovery and business continuity. And
this risk is being mitigated by the following controls in place:

e [T disaster recovery plan in place.

e Business continuity plan.

* System is hosted externally with backup.

e IT continuity plan reviewed when a service changes or a new service is added.
»  External access through VPN services (work from home).

While in case of the death of a Fund staff member, a clear and well-defined succession planning
within the Fund is in place, as per the Human Resources Policy.

Reputational risk

Reputational risk is a threat or danger to the good name or standing of a business or entity.
Reputational risk can occur in the following ways:

» Directly, as the result of the actions of the Fund.
e Indirectly, due to the actions of an employee or employees.
e Tangentially, through other peripheral parties, such as joint venture partners or suppliers.

The Fund is very dynamic and is continually evolving in terms of the services and the benefits it is
offering to its members and at times the changes are not well perceived by the members and
cause some trust or doubts amongst them.
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(f)

(g)

RISK MANAGEMENT Continued
Reputational risk Continued

From analysis it was found that the main cause of the reputational risk for the Fund is
misinformation and misunderstanding, as a result the corporate communication section has been
doing some intensive work to mitigate such risk through:

e A communication policy and plan.

¢ Increased marketing activities through awareness campaigns (newspaper, TV, online) to
promote the product and services of the Fund.

¢ Identify emerging organizations and marketing opportunities and undertake regular workplace
meetings.

* In-house clinics targeting individuals and small groups at workplaces to conduct awareness
sessions.

e Members are sensitized and briefed on the benefits operating model and the timing of
accessing their benefits.

e Regular road shows.

¢ Brand training with staff.

+ Digital communication portal is in operation.

e e-contribution portal.

e e-pension service is fully functional.

e Yearly Youth education and awareness session at post-secondary level.

Compliance risk/ Anti- Money Laundering and prevention of Terrorism financing

The Fund complies fully with Anti-Money Laundering Act, 2020 (as amended) and Countering of
Financial Terrorism Act, 2020 (as amended) and its amendments thereof. The Fund observes all
requirements and policies to ensure that there are no money laundering and terrorist financing
sources of funds. The main sources of funds come via the banking system through transactions
from employers and employees mostly via the Fund's bank accounts with minimal cash. The other
source of funds is from investment returns all from banking system. All banks are supervised by
Central Bank of Seychelles and have stringent Anti- Money Laundering systems in place. Other
mechanisms that the Fund observes are:

e Implementing its anti-money laundering and countering financing of terrorism anti-terrorism
financing policies in place since 2019. This policy is being updated to ensure full compliance
with the AML/CFT Act 2020 and its amendments.

¢ Employee training in AML.

* Independent audits.

+ Policies and procedures to detect and report suspicious transactions and ensure compliance
with the laws.

e Timely communications with the Financial Intelligence Unit (FIU).

e Submitting information to FIU, as requested.

There were no reported non-compliance cases concerning AML/ CFT at the Fund in the year 2024.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Buildings on
leasehold Furniture
land and and Motor
improvements  Software Equipment fittings vehicles Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR
COST
At January 1, 2023 34,296,767 - 23,248,586 12,604,013 3,253,888 73,403,254
Revaluation surplus 450,282 - - - - 450,282
Additions - 518,898 883,111 68,306 - 1,470,315
Disposals - - (530,191) (124,602) - (654,793)
At December 31, 2023 34,747,049 518,898 23,601,506 12,547,717 3,253,888 74,669,058
Revaluation surplus (7,105) - - - - (7,105)
Reclassification to expense - (381,301) - - - (381,301)
Additions 99,000 - 2,617,827 232,956 - 2,949,783
Disposals - - (213,699) (1,440,797) (1,044,401) (2,698,897)
At December 31, 2024 34,838,944 137,597 26,005,634 11,339,876 2,209,487 74,531,538
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
At January 1, 2023 27,434,428 - 16,228,222 7,925,876 2,902,982 54,491,508
Charge for the year 873,251 12,044 2,244,038 1,098,577 164,765 4,392,675
Disposals - . (479,421)  (112,694) . (592,115)
At December 31, 2023 28,307,679 12,044 17,992,839 8,911,759 3,067,747 58,292,068
Charge for the year 906,446 13,760 2,100,216 1,029,242 140,000 4,189,664
Disposals - - (213,699) (1,188,334) (1,044,401) (2,446,434)
At December 31, 2024 29,214,125 25,804 19,879,356 8,752,667 2,163,346 60,035,298
NET BOOK VALUE
At December 31, 2024 5,624,819 111,793 6,126,278 2,587,209 46,141 14,496,240
At December 31, 2023 6,439,370 506,854 5,608,667 3,635,958 186,141 16,376,990

Land and buildings were valued at December 31, 2024 by an independent valuer. The value of the land and
buildings is subject to review as per the revised Valuation Policy for Investment Assets approved by the Board of
Trustees in March 2025. The valuation and accounting recommended approaches are guided under IAS 40 for
valuation for investment properties and also as per IFRS 16 for leases.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2024 2023
SR SR

At fair value
Movements during the year is as follows:
At January 1, 1,453,434,179 1,462,974,021
Additions 16,714,621 11,839,308
Transfer from assets held for sale (note 12) 43,180,338 -
Movements in fair values:

Investment properties 97,808,386 (21,379,150)
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 12) (1,140,000) -
At December 31, 1,609,997,524 1,453,434,179
The following amounts have been recognised in statement of surplus:

2024 2023

SR SR

Property Management income:
Rental income 111,216,981 103,334,985
Property Management expenses:
Direct operating expenses (19,743,284) (18,463,053)
Profit arising from investment property 91,473,697 84,871,932
Increase/(Decrease) in fair value 98,198,506 {(12,140,962)
Surplus after fair value changes 189,672,203 72,730,970

The value of investment properties is subject to review every year by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, on an open-market basis with existing tenancies based on a Valuation of Properties
Policy approved by the Board. A Valuation Committee has also been set up since 2018 to review the
value of the investment properties on an annual basis. The Valuation Committee is chaired by an
independent, experienced, and qualified professional who is well versed in property valuation. All
investment properties were revalued as at December 31, 2024, resulting in a profit of SR. 98.2
million on 23 properties (note 8 (b)).

The fair value of the properties has been valued by an external valuer and administered by the
Investment Department under the Property Valuation Committee, chaired by an independent
individual.

During the year, there were refurbishment works on Corail D'or Apartments and Praslin Holiday
Home, which carried from the preceding year. The expected completion date for both projects is in
2025. As for the redevelopment of Le Chantier Mall, the commencement date for the works is
expected to be in 2025. (2023: one property partially demolished at a total cost of SR. 6 million and
the refurbishment is expected to commence in 2024).
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(f)

(g)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES Continued

Lease properties comprising Providence Micro Enterprise, Providence Warehouse, Port-Glaud Micro
Enterprise and Eve island Enterprise leased from the Government of Seychelles at one rupee were
previously restated at fair value determined at the time of their acquisition and were directly
recognised in Deferred Property Lease Reserve. The Reserve was amortised at SR 108,680 (period of
lease ranging between 60 - 99 years) each year. At December 31, 2024 the balance in the Deferred
Property Lease Reserve was transferred to Retained Surplus.

2024 2023
SR SR
At January 1, 6,200,675 6,309,355
Amortisation - (108,680)
Effect of reclassification to Retained surplus (note 19) (6,200,675) -
At December 31, - 6,200,675

If Investment properties had been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amount would have been as follows:

Land Building Total Total

2024 2024 2024 2023

SR SR SR SR

Cost 292,289,620  1,178,965,191 1,471,254,811 1,450,699,711
Accumulated depreciation - (198,745,961) (198,745,961) (175,166,657)
Net book value 292,289,620 980,219,230 1,272,508,850 1,275,533,054

RIGHT-OF-USE ON ASSETS

The Fund leased a land located at Caravelle House to run its business for a period of 97 years. The
initial deposit on the lease amounting to SR. 50 million paid in 2006 is being amortised over the term
of lease. The movement during the year is as follows:

2024 2023
SR SR
Cost
As January 1, and December 31, 50,000,000 50,000,000
Amortisation
At January 1, 9,443,217 8,927,753
Charge for the year 515,464 515,464
At December 31, 9,958,681 9,443,217

Net Book Value
At December 31, 40,041,319 40,556,783
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10.

(a)

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

Subsidiaries are investees controlled by the Fund. The Fund "Controls" an investee if it is exposed to,
or has right to, variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee.

Shareholding 2024 2023
% ge SR SR
At fair value:
Opportunity Investment Company Limited - ('OICL") 40,562,865 38,631,300
Movements during the year:
At January 1, 100% 38,631,300 34,768,170
Movement in fair value 1,931,565 3,863,130
At December 31, 100% 40,562,865 38,631,300

The Fund holds 100 shares of SR 105 each (at face value) in OICL as at December 31, 2024
representing a shareholding of 100%.

Details of the SPF's subsidiary ('OICL'), are given below:

OICL
Class of shares held : Ordinary
Year end H 31 December
Proportion of ownership interest and voting power held (direct : 100%
Country of incorporation and residence : Seychelles
Activity : Investment holding

OICL was incorporated as an investment vehicle solely for the purpose of acquiring shares in SACOS
Group Limited ('SACOS'). OICL currently holds 386,313 shares in SACOS which represents an
ownership interest of 19.31%.

The fair value of OICL is derived from the fair value of the SACOS shares it holds. At the end of the
reporting period the value per SACOS share was listed on the stock exchange at SR. 105 per share
(2023: SR. 100 per share).

Total value of SACOS shares held in OICL as at December 31, 2024 is 386,313 at SR. 105 each (2023:
SR. 100 per share).

The Fund also invested in 26,569 shares of SACOS directly which represents an ownership interest of
1.33%. This investment has been classified under financial assets measured at fair value through

profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2024, the Fund holds 20.64% in SACOS directly and indirectly.
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10.

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

11.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY Continued
Details of the Fund's subsidiary at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Name . Opportunity Investment Company Limited ('OICL')
Principal activity Investment holding

Summarized statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other income as per
audited financial statements:

2024 2023
SR'000 SR'000

Statement of financial position:
Assets
Current assets 1,783 143
Non-current assets 40,563 38,631
Liabilities
Current liabilities 36 97
Equity 42,310 38,677
Statement of profit or loss:
Total comprehensive profit or (loss) for the year 3,632 5,059
Summarized cash flow information:
Operating activities (98) 1,254
Financing activities - (1,216)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (98) 38

There were no commitment and contingencies as at the reporting date (2023 : SR. nil).

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Associates are those entities in which the Fund has significant influence, but not control, over
variable returns through its power over investee. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the
Fund holds 20% or more of voting power of another entity.

At fair value
Seychelles Breweries Limited ('SBL') - (listed)

Al Salam Bank Seychelles Limited ('ASBS') - (non- listed)
Cable & Wireless (Seychelles) Limited ('CWS') - (listed)

2024 2023

SR SR
281,741,510 275,112,298
26,255,702 25,887,645
476,520,000 660,000,000
784,517,212 960,999,943
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11. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES Continued
(a)  Seychelles Breweries Limited ('SBL')
Principal activity :  Beverage manufacturing
Shareholding: : 26% (2023: 26%)
2024 2023
SR SR
The movement during the year is as follows:
At January 1, 275,112,298 275,112,298
Movement in fair value 6,629,212 -
At December 31, 281,741,510 275,112,298

The financial year of Seychelles Breweries Limited ends on 30 June each year.

At December 31, 2024, the fair value of the Fund's interest in Seychelles Breweries Limited, which is
listed on the MERJ exchange, was 3,314,606 shares at SR. 85.00 per share (2023: 3,314,606 shares at
SR. 83.00) based on the quoted market price available, which is a level 1 input in terms of IFRS 13.

(i Summarized statement of financial position and statement of surplus and other comprehensive

income as per the unaudited financial statements:

Statement of financial position:

Assets
Current assets
Non-current assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity
Statement of profit or loss:
Revenues

Profit before tax

Total comprehensive income

(i)  Summarized cash flow information:

Operating activities

Investment activities

Financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

June, 30 June, 30
2024 2023
SR'000 SR'000
269,766 290,148
462,622 457,240
118,787 156,822
104,315 86,717
509,286 503,849
568,172 578,339
136,572 179,531
90,991 122,000
109,490 180,683
(53,772) (87,752)
(89,797) (102,084)
(34,079) (9,153)

(i)  Capital commitments at June 30, 2024, was SR. 20 million (2023: SR. 56.9 million). There were no

contingencies as at the reporting date (2023 : SR. nil).
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11. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES Continued
(b) Al Salam Bank Seychelles Limited ('ASBS')
Principal activity :  Banking Services
Shareholding: 1 30% (2023: 30%)
2024 2023
SR SR
The movement during the year is as follows:
At January 1, 25,887,645 25,830,747
Movement in fair value 368,057 56,898
At December 31, 26,255,702 25,887,645

(ii)

(iii)

As at December 31, 2024, the fair value of the shares in respect of Al Salam Bank which is a non-
listed associate, were calculated using the adjusted net asset value method which is a level 3 input in

terms of IFRS 13.

Summarized statement of financial position and statement of surplus and other comprehensive

income as per the unaudited financial statements:

Statement of financial position:

Assets
Liabilities
Equity

Statement of profit or loss:

Revenues
Profit before tax
Tax charge

Total comprehensive income
Summarized cash flow information:

Operating activities

Investment activities

Financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

At December 31, 2024 the commitments were SR.
no contingencies (2023: SR. nil).

Dec, 31 Dec, 31
2024 2023
SR'000 SR'000
1,151,732 965,158
1,063,315 877,979
88,417 87,179
30,002 26,690
2,900 2,744
(142) (173)
2,758 2,571
34,369 33,778
20,457 695
(6,049) (8,976)
48,777 25,497

1.75 million (2023: SR. 992,257) and there were
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11. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES Continued
(c) Cable & Wireless (Seychelles) Limited ('CWS')
Principal activity :  Telecommunication
Shareholding: 1 22%{2023:22%)
2024 2023
SR SR
The movement during the year is as follows:
At January 1, 660,000,000 660,000,000
Movement in fair value (183,480,000) -
At December 31, 476,520,000 660,000,000

(ii)

(i)

Cable & Wireless (Seychelles) Limited ('CWS') was first listed on the MERJ exchange in the year 2022.
At December 31, 2024, the fair value of 1,320,000 shares held in Cable and Wireless (Seychelles)
Limited was SR. 361 per share (2023: SR. 500 per share) based on the quoted market price available,
which is a level 1 input in terms of IFRS 13.

Summarized statement of financia! position as per the unaudited financial statements:

Dec, 31 Dec, 31
2024 2023
SR'Mn SR'Mn
Statement of financial position:
Assets
Current assets 466 472
Non-current assets 1,520 1,390
Liabilities
Current liabilities 430 492
Non-current liabilities 601 513
Equity 955 857
Summarized cash flow information:
Operating activities 328 378
Investment activities (152) (244)
Financing activities (171) (258)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 5 (124)

There were commitments of SR. 21.5 million (2023: SR. 15.5 million) and no contingencies as at the
reporting date (2023: SR. nil).
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12. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
2024 2023
SR SR
The movement during the year is as follows:
At January 1, 188,413,054 177,247,916
Transfer from investment properties (note 8 (a)) 1,140,000 -
Transfer back to investment properties (note 8 (a)) (43,180,338) -
Movements in fair values 390,122 9,238,189
Additions 3,840,478 1,926,949
At December 31, 150,603,316 188,413,054
Transfer from investment properties as per note 8.
In the year 2024, the Fund intended to dispose six investment properties. These assets were initially
recognised at fair value when transferred to assets held for sale. Negotiations for disposal of one
property is still in progress as at the end of the year.
As at December 31, 2024, there has been negotiations with the Government of Seychelles and other
private institutions for the disposal of three properties. The Management is of the view that this
issue will be resolved and will not affect the timely disposal of the property.
13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2024 2023
SR SR
Bank balances 134,871,703 173,524,552
Cash in hand 36,958 41,796
At December 31, 134,908,661 173,566,348
Bank balances were denominated in the following currencies:
Seychelles Rupees 91,071,560 93,151,695
US Dollar 39,167,352 75,425,533
Euro : 4,632,791 4,947,324

134,871,703 173,524,552
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14.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS

2024 2023
SR SR

Non-current Measurement category
Fixed deposits Amortised cost - 26,269,471
Treasury bonds Amortised cost 251,861,268 238,065,217
Corporate bonds Amortised cost 5,000,000 5,000,000
Equity securities Fair value through OCI 364,331,911 322,378,285
621,193,179 591,712,973

Current Measurement category
Fixed deposits Amortised cost 1,049,513,450 690,191,740

Treasury bills Amortised cost 1,739,160 -

Treasury bonds Amortised cost 44,447,272 50,000,000
Equity securities Fair value through P&L 13,711 13,711
1,095,713,593 740,205,451
Total financial assets 1,716,906,772 1,331,918,424

Investments in fixed deposits represent term deposits with banks with interest rates ranging from
4.50 % to 5.75% per annum for US Dollar accounts (2023: USD 4.40% to 5.32%) and 3.25 % to 7.00 %
per annum for Seychelles Rupee deposits (2023: SR. 2.00% to 7.00%) and their maturity dates fall
between January 10, 2025 and December 31, 2025.

Investments in Treasury Bonds comprise bonds with interest rates ranging from 3.50% to 12.00%
per annum (2023 : 3.50% to 12.00%) and treasury bills at 3.50 % for 365 days (2023: 4.76% to
6.10%) and their maturity dates fall between June 21, 2025 and November 13, 2033.

Equity securities comprise local securities listed on the MER) Exchange and other unlisted securities.
They also include listed and unlisted foreign securities.

Hierarchy of fair value levels is detailed under note 5 (f). Due to limited information available for the
fair value determination of the unquoted foreign securities, their fair values have been determined
based on the adjusted net assets value which is a level 3 input in terms of IFRS 13. In the year 2024,
the Fund did not acquire or dispose of any of its equity investments.

Investments in Corporate bonds represent bonds issued by Cable and Wireless (Seychelles) Limited
at 6% interest rate.
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14. INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS Continued
(e}  The details of the fair value adjustments for the investments in unquoted equities are as follows:
2024 2023
SR SR
Africa Finance Corporation 1,489,893 338,840
Afrexim Bank 7,628,131 926,855
TDB Class B shares 27,520,884 24,206,358
Seychelles Commercial Bank 659,026 117,788
Central Common Cold store 4,522,847 96,885
41,820,781 25,686,726
The net movement in the financial assets including equity securities is shown below:
2024 2023
SR SR
SACOS 132,845 265,690
() The net movement in the financial assets including equity securities is shown below:
2024 2023
SR SR
At January 1, 1,331,918,424 1,017,493,002
Additions 1,570,613,442 1,226,772,857
Redemption (1,227,578,720) {(938,299,851)
Fair value gain 41,953,626 25,952,416
At December 31, 1,716,906,772 1,331,918,424
(g) Investments in financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:
2024 2023
SR SR
Seychelles Rupee 985,866,017 860,091,663
Mauritian Rupee 13,711 13,711
US Dollar 731,027,044 471,813,050

1,716,906,772

1,331,918,424




SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND 48
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
15. RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
2024 2023
SR SR
(i) Contributions receivables from members (note (iv)) 43,902,169 36,122,206
Amount receivable from Seychelles Government (note (v)) 4,792,915 -
Interest receivable (note (ix)) 32,835,961 37,753,299
Rental income receivable (note (ii) and (vii)) 2,372,852 2,631,347
Prepayments 1,291,608 1,380,852
Other receivables (note (ii) and (vi)) 992,739 1,271,439
86,188,244 79,159,143
(ii) Rental income receivable 10,504,667 11,046,523
Provision for credit impairment (note (vii)) (8,131,815) (8,415,176)
Net rent receivable 2,372,852 2,631,347
Other receivables 1,190,509 1,471,209
Provision for cash loss (197,770) (199,770)
992,739 1,271,439
Movement in credit impairment:
At January 1, 8,614,946 10,815,106
Charge/(Reversal) for the year 460,361 (1,106,046)
Written off during the year (745,722) (1,094,114)
At December 31 8,329,585 8,614,946

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
{vii)

{viii)

(ix)

The carrying amount of the above receivables are denominated in Seychelles rupees and
approximate their fair value.

Contributions receivable from members are for the month of December 2024 that are due by
January 21, 2025. These also include contributions that are receivable in arrears.

The amount receivable from Government of Seychelles represents government pension (Special
Pension/Entitlement and Early Retirement). This was paid by the Fund to its members and the same
is due for refund by the Government of Seychelles.

Other receivables comprise sundry debtors, staff loan and debtors clearing accounts.

Rent receivables are net of provision for credit impairment. It is the Fund's policy to provide 50% for
debts outstanding over 60 days and 100% for debts outstanding for over 120 days. Rent receivables
with agreed repayment plans are excluded from provision for credit impairment. After exhausting all
means of recovery, rental debts are written off against the provision for credit impairment.

The Fund does not hold any collateral as security for the above receivables.

Interest receivables comprise interest due on Fixed Deposit, Treasury Bonds and Corporate bonds.
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16.

17.

(a)

(b)

18.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

Loan receivable is from Property Management Corporation (PMC) a government entity, secured by
Government Gazetted guarantee:

2024 2023
SR SR
At January 1, 51,848,797 72,089,473
Repaid during the year (25,109,335) (25,109,335)
interest receivable {note 25) 3,188,693 4,868,659
At December 31 29,928,155 51,848,797
Analysed:
Non-current 6,656,649 30,360,787
Current 23,271,506 21,488,010
29,928,155 51,848,797
OTHER PAYABLES
2024 2023
SR SR
Rental deposits 12,696,291 11,575,264
Advance on rent 1,034,445 589,459
Sundry and other payables 586,391 662,819
VAT overpaid (616,801) (388,965)
Accrued expenses 18,814,110 12,446,234
32,514,436 24,884,811

The carrying amounts of other payables are denominated in Seychelles rupees and approximate
their fair value.

Sundry payables include pension payments returned due to incorrect bank accounts/details of the
pensioners/members.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Fund recognised and provided for employee benefit obligations arising on account of gratuity

based on the regulations applicable to parastatal organisations and length of service severance
compensation based on the provisions of Seychelles Employment Act 1995, as amended.




SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND 50
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
18. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS Continued
(i) Amount recognised in the statement of financial position:
2024 2023
SR SR
Present value of unfunded obligation:
Gratuity 3,375,486 2,258,196
Compensation for length of service 10,763,496 9,419,512
14,138,982 11,677,708
(i)  Movement in the liability during the year:
At January 1, 11,677,708 11,886,011
Provided during the year 6,035,814 4,936,934
Paid during the year (3,574,540) (5,145,237)
At December 31, 14,138,982 11,677,708
The Fund has estimated that the provisions for retirement benefit obligation are reasonable and
would not materially differ had the obligation been computed based on an actuarial valuation as
mandated by IAS 19.
19. DEFERRED PROPERTY LEASE

Cost

As January 1, and December 31,

Amortisation

At January 1,
Charge for the year
At December 31,

Net Book Value

At December 31,
Reclassification to Retained Surplus
As Restated at December 31,

2024 2023
SR SR
7,846,750 7,846,750
1,646,075 1,537,395
- 108,680
1,646,075 1,646,075
6,200,675 6,200,675
(6,200,675) -
) 6,200,675

The leasehold land was originally accounted for at SR. 1, the value at which it was transferred to the
Fund by the Government of Seychelles and restated at fair value at the time of their acquisition. The
leasehold properties comprise; Providence Micro Enterprise, Providence Warehouse, Port-Glaud
Micro Enterprise and Eve Island Enterprise. The fair value of the benefit was being taken to income
over the life of the underlying assets (60 - 99 years). The balance was transferred to retained
earnings in the year 2024 following changes to the recognition and measurement of deferred

property lease agreements.
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20.

21,

22.

(a)

VALUATION OF NET ASSETS AGAINST ACTUARIAL VALUE OF PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As per the actuary valuation, the accrued benefits are separated between vested and non-vested
benefits. Vested benefits are at the present value of all expected future payments to current
pensioners and future spouses' pension on the death of current pensioners. Non-vested benefits are
the measure of the value of the amount standing in member accounts at valuation date. The Fund
will be able to meet all benefit obligations in the future if this is followed since the Fund operates a
'pay-as-you-go' pension plan. Actuarial evaluation is carried to cover next 60 years.

MEMBERS' FUND

Members' fund represents the balance due to members who have contributed to the Fund (it also
includes the balance transferred from Seychelles Pension Scheme from 1991). This includes
employee contributions both mandatory and voluntary, contributions from self-employed and
employer contributions both mandatory and voluntary together with cumulative accumulated
interest thereon. The members' fund is used to finance pension payment on a monthly basis and
lump-sum refunds to members who do not qualify for monthly pension.

2024 2023
SR SR

Details of members fund are as follows:
At January 1, 1,972,426,048 1,828,904,247
Mandatory contribution 811,068,662 748,553,839
Voluntary contribution 42,257,826 39,285,162
Pension and Benefit payments (682,447,315) {663,986,180)
Other refunds (overpayments) (16,942,585) {(15,135,924)
Interest for the year 39,701,836 34,804,904
At December 31, 2,166,064,472 1,972,426,048
OTHER FUND

2024 2023

SR SR

Net contributions from Social Security inherited (note (a)) 11,703,935 11,703,935
Receipts from National Provident Fund (note (b)) 71,215,276 71,215,276
Transfer from Social Security Fund - Investment Funds 406,870,976 406,870,976
Pension contributions from Govt 43,489,567 43,489,567
At December 31, 533,279,754 533,279,754
Net contributions from Social Security includes following:
Contributions from Social Security Division 532,099,144 532,099,144
Payments made for Social Security Pension (520,395,209) (520,395,209)

11,703,935 11,703,935
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22.

(b)

23,

24.

25.

OTHER FUND Continued

The National Provident Fund Act was repealed and after refunding the contributions to the persons
entitled under the Act, the balance was transferred to the Fund as required under Section 73 (2) of
the Seychelies Pension Fund Act, 2005.

RESERVE FUND
2024 2023
SR SR
Reserve fund - 14,568,591

The Fund transferred annually to this Reserve Fund, 30% of the surplus interest earned by the Fund
after payment of interest to its members. The Chief Executive Officer, acting on the advice of the
Board of Trustees, did not make any annual transfers subsequent to the year 2006.

The transfer to the Reserve Fund was made in order to increase the distributable reserve. In the
later part of 2024, as approved by the board, this balance was transferred to retained earnings and
will increase the members funds.

Transferred to Retained earnings during the year.

OTHER RESERVES
2024 2023
SR SR
Fair value reserve
At January 1, 153,926,169 153,926,169
Net change during the year - -
At December 31, 153,926,169 153,926,169

Other reserves comprise the revaluation reserve, fair value reserves on equity investments and
property.

INTEREST INCOME

2024 2023

SR SR

Fixed deposits ' 35,166,119 18,919,492
Treasury bonds and bills 22,514,896 21,305,991
Corporate bonds 300,821 65,753
Bank balances 710,759 842,745
Staff loans 469 8,641
PMC loan 3,188,693 4,868,659

61,881,757 46,011,281
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26.

27.

28.

(a)

DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividends on local equity investments
Dividends on foreign equity investments

INTEREST CREDITED TO MEMBERS

2024 2023

SR SR
52,442,221 52,883,376
10,213,523 8,522,021
62,655,744 61,405,397

Interest credited to Members' Fund was 1.5% and 3.75% for mandatory and voluntary respectively
for the year 2024. The new interest policy effective April 1, 2019, is to calculate interest rate to be
credited to non-vested members who can withdraw lump sum amounts from their account since
they do not qualify for a pension based on the 12 months average savings rate. Amount credited for
the year ended December 31, 2024, is SR. 39.7 million (2023: Mandatory 1.75% and Voluntary 4% -

SR. 34.8 million).

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other related expenses
13th month salary

Bonus

Pension contribution

Provision for employee compensation
Provision for staff gratuity

Office operating costs (note (a))
Motor vehicles running expenses
Postage, printing, and stationery
Telephone

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance

Other expenses (note (b))

Office operating costs are analysed as follows:

Training

Uniforms

Travelling

Staff welfare

Staff insurance

Journals and newspaper
Bank charges
Miscellaneous expense

2024 2023

SR SR
40,365,576 34,039,460
2,768,288 2,340,396
2,526,809 4,625,060
2,691,108 2,268,652
1,818,801 2,230,700
4,217,014 2,706,233
6,392,317 2,778,747
339,339 300,174
800,310 1,174,877
853,178 765,566
1,291,537 944,356
1,651,793 1,092,434
5,828,812 5,011,285
71,544,882 60,277,940
3,598,654 780,697
538,865 251,274
494,435 432,889
856,865 606,496
54,041 61,289
58,278 42,236
539,631 516,489
251,548 87,377
6,392,317 2,778,747
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28.

(b)

29.

30.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Continued

Other expenses are analysed as follows:

Internet charges

Rent - Caravelle House
Rent - Jupiter House
Rent - Pointe Conan
Cleaning

Board of trustees' fees
Appeal review panel fees
Medical board fees
Office consumables
Input VAT not claimable

OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES

Other professional fees Include:

2024 2023

SR SR
1,418,848 1,436,921
1,390,800 1,390,800
169,500 166,000
185,306 138,770
1,647,832 744,000
44,400 29,400
76,800 159,600
69,505 49,715
825,821 896,079
5,828,812 5,011,285

Professional fees paid to Reserve Advisory and Management Partnership (RAMP) for capacity
building purposes, a partnership between the Fund and the World Bank entered into in the year
2020. Professing fees were also paid for due diligence services conducted during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances owing from related parties:
Government of Seychelles
Loans and receivable from PMC

Transactions - Dividends received
Cable & Wireless (Seychelles) Limited
Al Salam Bank Seychelles Limited
Seychelles Breweries Limited

Rental received:
Government of Seychelles

Key management personnel
Gross salaries (strategic management personnel)
Board of Trustees' remuneration (note 31)

2024 2023
SR SR
4,792,915 -
29,928,155 51,848,797
28,604,400 28,050,000
455,565 713,814
22,506,175 22,506,175
83,205,547 80,277,195
4,186,404 4,477,248
1,647,832 744,000
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS Continued

(a)  Transactions with related parties are within the normal course of business.

(b)  For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Fund has not recorded any impairment of receivables
relating to amounts owed by related parties as their carrying value approximates their fair value.

(2023: SR. nil). This assessment is undertaken at the end of each financial year through examining
the financial position of the related party and the market in which the latter operates.

31. BOARD OF TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND SECRETARIAT EXPENSES

2024 2023
SR SR
M. Houareau 32,366 96,000
P. Payet 24,367 72,000
B. Morin 146,200 72,000
Elsie Morel 146,200 72,000
S. Mohideen 186,200 72,000
Jose St Ange 24,367 72,000
Sarah Lang 24,367 72,000
S. Jolicoeur 24,367 72,000
J. Rath 24,367 72,000
0.vidot 137,833 -
D.Labonte 121,833 -
T.Gendron 121,833 -
A.Benoiton 121,833 -
F.Horner 121,833 -
V.Mussard 121,833 -
K.Arnephy 121,833 B
Secretariat
M. Pillay 146,200 72,000

1,647,832 744,000
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32.

33.

34.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2024 2023
SR'000 SR'000

Capital Commitments
Approved and contracted 58,136 27,838
Approved but not contracted 237,762 258
295,898 28,096

Capital commitments are for ongoing projects which have been approved by the Board of Trustees
as at the reporting date. They include projects that have been contracted and yet to commence and
those that are yet to be contracted.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Board of trustees are not aware of any contingent liabilities at December 31, 2024 (2023: SR.
nil).

EVENTS OCCURING AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

During the financial year under review, the Fund offered six properties for sale. These were the
Corail D’Or apartments located at North East Point, the La Clementine property at Baie St Anne, the

La Passe Pension House on La Digue, Port Glaud property, a property of 3 vacant land parcels
located at Pointe Aux Sel and 1 vacant land on La Digue.




